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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Nelco Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Nelco Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associate company (refer Note 46 to the
attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2019, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the
relevant records. (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group and its associate company as at March 31, 2019, of consolidated total comprehensive
income (comprising of consolidated profit and consolidated other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its associate company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in
terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained, other than the unaudited financial information as certified
by the management and referred to in paragraph 17 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

4. We draw your attention to note 29 to the consolidated financial statements regarding composite
scheme of arrangement between the Company, Tatanet Services Limited (TNSL) and Nelco
Network Products Limited which was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal
("NCLT”) vide its order dated November 2, 2018 (the “Scheme”). As per the NCLT Order, the
Company intimated the Registrar of the Companies (“RoC”) about the approval of the Scheme by
NCLT, stating that Department of Telecommunications (“DoT”) approval was not yet obtained.
The RoC records were, however, updated to reflect the Scheme as effective and TNSL as
“amalgamated” with the Company. Based on legal advice, the Company has approached NCLT to
direct the RoC to amend their records to reinstate TNSL to its earlier status and cancel the effect
of the Scheme with immediate effect. The decision of NCLT is awaited. The Scheme will be given
effect to in the financial statements on receipt of all necessary approvals. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter. @
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Key Audit Mallers

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context ol our

audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

_Key audit matter

Revenue recognition related to multiple
eclement arrangements

(Refer notes 1.13 and 2.1(a) to the Consolidated
Finanecial Statements)

In respect of the Network Systems segment, the
contracts with customers include multiple
olements including sale of products and
ancillary gervices like installation,
commissioning, annual maintenance clc.,
including specific pricing arrangements and
rental income for equipment given on lease. In
certain  cases, the contracts also  involve
multiple entities in  the Group. The
identification of performance obligations under
the contracts with customenrs, allocation of
consideration to the performance obligations
identified and determination of the amounl and
timing of revenue recognition in accordance
with Ind AS 115 requires exercise of judgement
by the Company’s management.

We considered this to be a Key Audit Matter in
view of the customer contracts being large,
complex and non-standard.

Assessment of recoverability of deferred
tax assets (net) including MAT Credit
Intitlement

(Refer notes 1.16 and 21(d) to the Consolidated
[financial Statements)

The Company has deferred tax assets (net) of
Rs. 745 lakhs including MAT Credit Entitlement
of Rs, 382 lakhs as at March 31, 2019. The
realisation of these tax benefits is dependent on
generation of future taxable profits and the rate
at which those profits will be taxed.

addressed the key audit matter

How our audit

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue

recognition included:

o Understanding and evaluating the design and
testing the operating effectiveness of key controls

gver reventie recognition;

o Testing of contracts with customers on a sample

basis to assess the contractual terms impacting
identification of  performance obligations,
allocation of consideration to these performance
obligations based on determination of standalone
selling prices and determination of the timing of
recognition for each of these revenue components;

o Testing the timing of fulfilment of performance
obligations and recognition of revenue based on
agreed pricing;

« Evaluating the impact of first time adoption of Ind
AS 115 on revenue in respect of contracts with
customers for Network Systems segment;

e Performing tests related to non-standard manual
journal entries related to revenue.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
note any significant  exceptions regarding the
management’s assessment of the performance
obligations, allocation of consideration to the
identified performance obligations and revenue
recognition.

Our audit procedures included:

o Understanding and evaluating the design and
testing the operating offectiveness of key controls
over recognition and review of deferred tax assets
(net) including MAT Credit Entitlement;

o Assessing the appropriatencss of tax rate applied to
forecast future taxable profits;

o Considering whether the deferred tax asset is
recognised and MAT Credit Entitlement is legally
available for the forecasted recoupment period;
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We considered this a key audit matter as
significant judgement is required Dby the
management of the Company in relation lo
recognition and assessment of recoverability of
deferred tax assets including MAT Credit
Entitlement under the Income-tax Act, 1961.
The recognition of deferred tax assets (net)
including MAT Credit Entitlement is based on
the management approved business plan for the
next 5 years and there are significant underlying
assumptions associated with forecasts ol
taxable profits.

Assessment of Contingent liabilities and
provisions for litigations

(Refer notes 1.20 and 2.1(h} to the Consolidated
Financial Statements)

As at March 31, 2019, the Group held provisions
of Rs 9o lakhs and disclosed Contingent
liabilities (to the extent not provided for) of Rs
4,836 lakhs in respect of certain tax and other
litigations.

‘The Group faces challenges from tax authorities
during tax assessment proceedings and from
cerlain business service providers, during the
normal course of business. There is a high level
of management judgement required in
estimating the probable outflow of economic
resources and the level of provisioning and the
disclosures required. The management's
assessment is supported by advice [from
independent tax and legal consultants obtained
by the management.

We focused on this area as the outcome of the
litigations is uncertain and the positions taken
by the management are hbased on the
application of material judgement, advice from
lax/legal consultants and interpretation of law.
The ultimate ouitcome of the litigations could be
different from the positions taken by the
management and may significantly impact the
Group’s financial position.

« Assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions of

the business plans approved by the Board of
Directors of the respective Companies;

Evaluating the progress made by the Company in
achieving taxable profits for the business in recent
periods;

Performing sensitivity analysis on the estimated
taxable profits Dby varying the underlying
significant assumptions to assess that the
recoupment period is within the legally available
time limit.

Based on the above procedures, we did not identify
any significant differences between our expectations
and the management’s assessment.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Understanding and evaluating processes and
controls designed and implemented by the
management for assessment of litigations and
testing their operating effectiveness;

Obtaining the list of taxation and other litigation
matters, inspecting the supporting evidence and
critically assessing management’s  evaluation
through discussions with management on both the
probability of outcome and the magnitude of
potential outflow of economic resources;

Reading recent orders received from the tax
authorities and other communication from the
business service providers, and the Company’s
responses to such communications to assess the
status of the litigations;

Where relevant, reading most recent advice
obtained by management from independent
tax/legal consultants and evaluating the grounds
presented therein;

Evaluating  independence,  objectivity and
competence of the management’s tax/legal
consultants;

Obtaining direct confirmations from lawyers,

where considered relevant;

Understanding the current status of the tax
assessments/ litigations;

Together with auditors’ tax experts, evaluating the
management assessment of estimated potential tax
exposures considering the applicable provisions of
direct and indirect tax laws. We did not identify any
material exceptions as a result of above procedures.
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Other Information

6.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report including Annexure
to Director’s report, Management Discussion and Analysis and Report on Corporate
Governance but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

9.

(R

11.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including its associate
company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate company are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free frommaterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have heen used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate company are responsible for nssessing
the ability of the Group and of its associate company 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless managemenl either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associate company are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group and of its associate company.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

13.As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its
associate company to conlinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
and its associate company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to
express an opinion on the consolidited finuncial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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14. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent anditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing, of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

15. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

16. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes publie disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, We determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

17. The consolidated fina neial statements include the Group's share of total comprehensive
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 9 lakhs for the
year ended March 31, 2019 as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of one associate company whose financial information have not been andited by
us. These financial information are anaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial stalements insofar as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate company and
our reporl in terms of suh-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other
Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate company, is based solely on
such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according 1o the information
and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial information are not
material to the Group.

Owr opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements helow. is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect
to our reliance on the financial in formalion ol the associate company certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

18. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, 1o the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;
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(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(8)

Mumbai

The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated Statement of Changes in iquity and the
consolidated Statement of Cash Flows deall with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and
associate company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies,
its associate company incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure A;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us:

i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associale
company — Refer Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group and its associate company had long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2019 for which there were no material foreseeable losses;
{ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, associate company incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2019;
iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to
the Group for the year ended March 31, 2019. ?
LP

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Sharmila A. Karve
Partner

April 27, 2019 Membership Number: 43229
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of Nelco Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its
subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are companies incorporated in India, as
of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its
associate company, to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the 1CAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial

statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which
are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India. ijf

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Sharmila A. Karve
Mumbai Partner
April 27, 2019 Membership Number: 43229



Nelco Limited
Consolldated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(Rs. In Lakhs)

particulars Note As at As at
No March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 8,486 4,886
(b) Capital work-Iin-progress 4 1,660 468
(c) Intanglble assets 4 182 190
(d) Financial assets
(1) Investments S 16 576
(1) Trade recelvable 6 (a) - 223
{lil) Loans 7{a) 24 29
{iv) Other financlal assets 8 (a) 285 -
(e) Deferred tax assets {net) 36 745 38
{f) Income tax assets (net) 9 2,141 2,208
{g) Other non-current assets 10 {a) 54 8
Total non current assets 13,593 8,626
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 789 887
{b) Financlal assets
{1) Trade receivables 6 (b) 5,997 5,473
() Cash and cash equivalents 12 548 397
(1) Bank balances other than (11) above 13 29 28
{iv) Loans 7 (b} 136 107
(v} Other financlal assets 8 (b} 1,119 270
{c) Other current assets 10 (b} 962 423
Assets classified as held for sale 562 -
Total current assets 10,142 7,585
TOTAL ASSETS 23,735 16,211
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 15 2,282 2,282
{b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus 16 3,290 1,083
Other reserves 16 (a) 12 12
Total equity 5,584 3,377
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabllitles
(a) Financial liabllities
{1} Borrowings 17 (a) 3,385 758
{1i) Other financial liabilities 18 (a) 7 10
(b) Provisions 19 (a) 491 421
(c) Other non-current liabilitles 20(a) 21 30
Total non-current llabllitles 3,904 1,219
Current liabilitles
{a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 17 (b) 3,406 3,839
{ii) Trade payables 21
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
{b) total outstanding dues other than (i) (a) above 3,633 3,251
(Ili) Other financial liabilities 18 (b) 4,399 1,769
{b) Provisions 19 (b) 206 181
(c) Contract llabllities 14 2,352 -
{d) Other current llabilities 20(b) 251 2,575
Total current liabllitles 14,247 11,615
Total llabllities 18,151 12,834
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23,735 16,211
The above consolldated balance sheet should be read In conjunction with the accompanylng notes.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Reglstration Number : 012754N/N500016 NELCO LIMITED ‘\,(‘\‘
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Nelco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from operatlons 22 19,101 14,961
Other income 23 428 494
Total Income 19,529 15,455
Expenses
(a) Purchases of stock-in-trade 3,297 1,830
(b) Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 24 98 14
(c) Employee benefits expense 25 2,779 2,256
(e) Finance costs 26 738 593
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 1,296 949
(g) Transponder charges 28 3,469 3,140
(h) Other expenses 28 5,859 5,208
Total expenses 17,536 13,990
Profit before share of net profit of Investment accounted for using equity 1,993 1,465
method and tax
Share of net profit of associate accounted for using the equity method 9 57
Profit before tax 2,002 1,522
Income tax expense 2c
- Current tax 596 271
- Deferred tax (823) 40
Total tax expense (227) 311
Net profit for the year 2,229 1,211
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Net fair value gain on investments in equity shares at FVTOC! * 1
-Share of other comprehensive income of associate company accounted for (1) (3)
using the equity method
-Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations (21) (19)
Total other comprehensive income (22) (21)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,207 1,190
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs 10/- per share) (Basic and diluted) 42 9.77 5.31

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company

The above consolidated statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016

\or

Sharmila A, Karve
Partner
Membership No.43229

: Mumbai
: April 27, 2019

Place

Date
¥

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

NELCO LIMITED
CIN : L32200MHI940PLC003164
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R. R. Bhinge
Chalrman
(DIN: 00036557)
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% (228
Uday Banerj
Chief Finangial Officer

Place :Mumbai
Date : April 27, 2019

N
%(‘e‘il
PJ.Nath
Managing Director and CEO

(QIN: 05118177)
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Company Secretary & Head - Legal




Nelco Limited

Consolldated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2019

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Proflt before Income tax 2,002 1,522
Profit before Income tax 2,002 1,522
AdJustments for:
Depreclation and amortisation expense 1,296 949
finance Costs 738 593
Unreallsed forelgn exchange {gain) / loss ] 9
Provislon for doubtful debts (32) {67}
Bad debts written off 72 86
Provision for warranty {net) 26 20
Llabllities/Provislons no longer required, written back (69) -
Provlsion for foreseeable losses written back {10) (45)
Galn on disposal of property, plant and equipment {net) (6] {(21)
Unwinding of discount on flnanclal asset measured at amortised cost (57) (43)]
Interest Income classified as investing cash flow {22) (3]
Change In falr value Investment - (1)
Interest income {179] (110}
Provlslon for contingency - 11
Share of net profit of assoclate accounted for using the equity method () (57)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 3,743 2,843
Adjustments For Changes In Working Capital:
Movements In Assets
- {Increase) / Decreass in Trade recelvables (340) {2,003
- (Increase} / Decrease in Other Current Assets {539) 338
- {Increase) / Decrease In Other Non Current Assets (48) 14
- (Increase) / Decrease In FInanclal Assets - Non Current - Loans .1 19}
- (Increase) / Decrease In inventorles 98 14
- (Increase) / Decrease in Other Financlal Assets - Current (8ag) 124
- {Increase) / Decrease In Other Financlal Assets -Non Current 1269) 7
- {Increase) / Decrease in Financlal Assets - Current - Loans 28 -
- (Increase) / Decrease In Other Bank Balances (1) 6
Movements in Llabllities - -
- Increase / {Decrease) In Trade Payables 495 B42
- Increase / (Decrease) In Other Financlal Llabilitles - Non Current (3} (13}
- Increase / {Decrease) In Other Liabilitles - Non Current {a) 30
- Increase / (Decrease) in Provislons - Non Current 70 54
- Increase / (Decrease) In Other FInanclal Liabilitles - Current 136 24
- Increase / {Decrease) In current Contract Llabliities 2,352 -
- Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabllitles {2,324) 1,282
- Increase / {Decrease) In Provisions - Current (12) (110)
Cash generated from operations 2,535 3,443
- Taxes Pald (Net of refunds) {413) 228)
Net Cash generated from operating activitles- (A) 2,122 3,215
8. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment / Intanglble Assets 15,339} {2,079}
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment / Intanglble Assets 680 401
Interest Recelved 201 3
Proceeds received on account of sale of UGS business to holding company 223
In previous year
Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents
- Fixed deposits placed (16) gl
- Matured - 20
Dividend From associate & 6
Net Cash {Used In) Investing Actlvitles (B) (4,458) {1,426)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings
- Receipts 18,544 13,316
- Payments {15,229) (13,866)
Finance lease payments (75) 167)
Finance Costs Pald {738) |596)
Dividend Paid - &
Net Cash (Used In) Financing Actlvities- {C) 2,502 {1,218)
Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equlvalents [(A)+{B)+(C)] 156 570
Cash and Cash Equlvalents as at Aprll 1, 2018 138 (232}
Cash and Cash Equival as at March 31, 2019 494 338
Non-cash flnancing activitles
- Aegulsition of property, plant and squlp { by means of finance lease l - | 443 |




Nelco Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement (Rs. In Lakhs)
Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of : As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of :

Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts 422 233

Cash on Hand 1 1

Chegues on Hand 125 163

Bank Overdraft (54) (59)
Total 494 338

The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of (\
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016 NELCO LIMITED

CIN : L32200MHI940PLC003164 \}P
vw xxﬁ‘f
Sharmlla A. Karve R. R. Bhinge P.J. Nath

Partner Chalrman Managing Director and CEO
Membership No.43229 DIN: 00036557) (DINf05118177)
L]
() o4 M/
Uday Baner] Gldish V. Kirki
Chiel Financidl Officer Company Secretary & Head - Legal
Place : Mumbal Place : Mumbal

Date :April 27,2019 Date :April 27,2019




Nelco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A. Equity share capltal

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at April 1, 2017 2,282
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2018 2,282
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2019 2,282
B.Other Equity
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Other Reserves
Particulars General Retained FVOCI Total
Reserve earnings Equity Instrument
As at April 1, 2017 250 (356) 11 {95)
Profit for the year - 1,211 - 1,211
Other comprehensive income for the year - (22) 1 (21)
As at March 31, 2018 250 833 12 1,095
Profit for the year - 2,229 - 2,229
Other comprehensive income for the year - (22) * 22
As at March 31, 2019 250 3,040 12 3,302
*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016 NELCO LIMITED ‘
CIN : L32200MHI940PLC003164 /
\_cw V- D Lu \l
oAV gl X

Sharmila A. Karve R. R. Bhinge P.J. Nath
Partner Chalrman Managing Director and CEO

Membership No.43229

Place : Mumbai

ﬁe : April 27, 2019

(DIN: 00036557)

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai

Date :April 27,2019

(DIN] 05118177) A,

Girlsh V. Kirkinde
Company Secretary & Head - Legal
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Notes annexﬂto emformingﬁrto_fCoElidated Fiﬂmcial Statements fo_rthe year ended March 31, 2019

General Information
Nelco Limited (Formerly known as National Ekco Radio & Engineering Co Ltd) herein after referred to as “the
Company” was established in 1940. The Company is a subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited.

The Company is engaged in business of providing systems and solutions in the areas of VSAT connectivity and
Integrated Security & Surveillance. The Company offers a range of innovative and customized solutions for
businesses and government institutions under one roof.

The Company's Subsidiary Tatanet Services Limited is in the business of providing VSAT domestic data network
service to closed user group (CUG) networks via Satellite System on non-exclusive basis within the territorial
boundary of India under the VSAT License granted by Department of Telecommunications (D.0.T.).

Equity shares of the Company are listed in India on the Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE") and The National Stock
Exchange ("NSE"). The registered office of the Company is located at EL-6, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Electronic
Zone, Mahape, Navi Mumbai - 400710, CIN: L32200MH1940PLC003164.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also Functional Currency of
the Group. The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on April 27, 2019.

1. Summary of Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS
The Consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Historical Cost Convention
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:
e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value:
e defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.
e asset held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell.

¢. Current -non current classification
Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Group’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

d. New and amended Standards adopted by the Group.
The company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing April 1, 2018:

- Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
- Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration to Ind AS 21, The Effects of

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates ol
- Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
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The company had to change its accounting policies following the adoption of Ind AS 115. This is disclosed
in note 43. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

e. Basis of consolidation
The Company consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and associate (together referred to as
“the Group”). Control exists when the Parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its
power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct
relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the group.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in statement of profit and Joss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
statement of profit and loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS
109, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the acquisition date.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of the assets. Subsequent costs are added to existing item’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
a. Capital work-in-progress

Projects under which Property, Plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

b. Depreciation methods estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost, net of their estimated residual
value, over their estimated useful lives. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease
is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of asset's useful life and the lease term if
there is no reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

The useful lives and residual values are as prescribed under schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 except for
the following type of assets where useful life is considered as per management estimate, based on
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset; the
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operating conditions of the asset, replacements generally required from the point of view of operational

effectiveness.

[ TypeofAssets
Plant and Machinery Radio frequency (RF) antenna — 9 Years

Basic electronics — 6 Years

J_ T useful Life o

Networking devices - 6 years

RF and baseband — 10 to 12 Years
VSAT antenna and parts — 15 Years
E\teﬁna_— 1cﬁ(ea? ———
Electronics - 7.50 Years

Cﬁice_equ_ipngnts_— VSAT a

Basic electronics — 6 Years

I

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit and loss within Other income / Other Expenses.

_Ofﬁce?quipm ents

3 Years
Computer hardware

1.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The Group amortises intangible assets using straight
line method over the following periods.

License Fees — VSAT . Over the license period of 20 years
License Fees — ISP . Over the license period of 15 years
Testing software . 5 years

1.4 Impairment of non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment |oss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

1.5 Investments and other financial assets
a. Classification
The group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
s those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through the statement of profit and loss), and

e those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit and
whether:

loss or other comprehensive income. For Investment in equity instruments, this will depend
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the group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Equity Instruments

The group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the group's management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the group's right to receive payment is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, except for specifically identified cases, Group follows a
simplified approach permitted by the IND AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

e The group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the group has not retained control
of the financial asset. Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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1.6

e. Income Recognition
Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will
flow to the group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend has been established.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdraft. Bank overdraft are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.7 Trade receivable

1.8

1.9

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial Liabilities

i) Classification
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

ii) Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial
liability not at fair value through statement of profit or joss), that are directly attributable to the issue of
financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated
as measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss.

iii) Derecognition:
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services received by the group prior to the end of reporting

are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless ment s not
Ch LIS

pay
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due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

1.10 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

1.11 Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of
purchases and includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, Cost is determined using the weighted average method and is net of provision for obsolescence
and other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

1.12 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, which are specifically
exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of
an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified
as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of business, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
such a line of business. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of
profit and loss.

1.13 Revenue recognition
The Group earns revenue from providing VSAT connectivity systems and solutions through sale of goods,
providing installation and annual maintenance services, renting of goods, Integrated Security & Surveillance
services. The Group also earns revenue from providing VSAT domestic data network service to closed user
group (CUG) networks via Satellite System on non-exclusive basis (Bandwidth Services).

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
: <ideration which the Group expects t '
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The Group recognises revenue as follows:

a. Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the

customer, being when the goods are delivered to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

b. Rendering of Services

- Revenue from annual maintenance contract and network management is recognized over the period
of performance. '

- Revenue from Installation and commissioning services is recognized upon completion of installation of
equipment.

- Revenue from bandwidth services is provided over the period of time, where it is received and
consumed simultaneously by the customers and accordingly revenue is recognized over the period of
performance and in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

¢. Rental Income

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised on straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease in accordance with contract with the customers.

d. Construction Contracts

In respect of construction contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method
(‘POC method’) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the
performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling
warranty obligations.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be
received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements.
The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing
obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a
cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue
from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.1,
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1.14 Foreign currency translation

a. Functional and presentation currency
items included in the financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statement is presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Nelco Limited’s functional and presentation

currency.

b. Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income / other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

1.15 Derivative financial instruments:

The group holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is
generally a bank. Although the group believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic
perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any
derivative is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.
Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
derivatives are measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss and the resulting exchange
gains or losses are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets/ liabilities in this category are
presented as current assets/current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized
within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

1.16 Current and deferred tax
The Income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. in this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. '
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a. Current Tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b. Deferred Tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between- the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and carry
forward tax credits only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences, tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

1.17 Leases

As a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group as lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership is classified as finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of lease at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial
liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the

lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the Group's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
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1.18

1.19

1.20

lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the

jease term.

Borrowing

Borrowing are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there us breach of a material
provision of a long-term loan agreement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that
the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements
for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

a. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of timeis rgcqgnised

as interest expense.
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The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditure arising from the
restructuring, which are both necessary entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the group.

i) Onerous Contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract.

ii) Warranties
Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Groups's obligation.

b. Contingent liabilities
The Company has Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

¢. Contingent Assets
A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.21 Employee benefits
a. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including other monetary and non-monetary benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

b. Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The group has liabilities for compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service.
They are therefore measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yield at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations. Re-measurements as a
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The obligation is presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. T
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¢. Post-employment obligations (Defined Benefit Obligations)
The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

o defined benefit plans — Gratuity and Provident Fund
« defined contribution plans such as Superannuation Fund and Employee State Insurance Corporation
(ESIC).

Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit provident fund and
gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest
cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit
and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptions
and return on plan assets (excluding interest income) are recognised in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Group pays Superannuation Fund and ESIC contributions to publicly administered funds as per local
regulations. The Group has no further payment obligation once the contribution has been made. Group’s
contribution to Superannuation Fund and ESIC is recognised on accrual basis in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The
group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits ; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

1.22 Segment reporting
The board of directors assesses performance of the Group as Chief Operating Decision Maker.

The group has identified following 2 reportable segments, in @ manner consistent with internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker:

control comprises of sales of security and surveillance products.
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b. Network systems comprises sale of Very Small Aperture Terminals (“VSAT”) hardware and providing
allied services consisting of network management, project management, infrastructure services,
turnkey solutions for satellite communication systems, and co-location services to customers. (Refer
note 35 for segment reporting)

1.23 Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1.24 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
e the profit attributable to owners of the group
s by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.1 Critical estimates and judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty: -
In the application of the groups's accounting policies, which are described in note 1 above, the
management of the group is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
In the following areas the management of the group has made critical judgements and estimates

a) Revenue recognition

e The Group’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods and
services to a customer. The Group assesses the goods / services promised in a contract and
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance
obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to
benefit independently from such deliverables. Each revenue component is recognised based on the
policy noted in Note 1.13 above.

e The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
oblization by the Group Companies. The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
=m.on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct gogs
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b)

d)

f)

g)

h)

promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Group uses the
expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance
obligation.

e The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as services are rendered.

e Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

Recognition and measurement of construction contract revenue

Revenue from construction contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Group
uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine
the degree of completion of the performance obligation.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The group has defined benefit plans for its employees which are actuarially valued. Such valuation is
based on many estimates and other factors, which may have a scope of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
carry forward tax credits only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize
those temporary differences, tax losses and tax credits. The management assumes that taxable profits
will be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

The group reviews the useful lives and carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

Estimation of provision for warranty claims

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the groups’s obligation.

Expected Credit Loss on trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit
risk has been managed by the group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit terms in
the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the group uses expected credit
loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The group uses a provision matrix and forward-
looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset to
compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. (Refer Note 31)

Estimation of Provisions & Contingent Liabilities
The group exercises judgment in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to
contingent liabilities which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgment is

ise—and to
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quantify the possible range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this
evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the originally estimated as provision or
contingent liability. (Refer Note 44)

2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements - standards issued but not yet effective:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notified Ind AS 116, the new leases accounting standard, and
certain other amendments to Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) on March 30, 2019, to be effective from
reporting periods beginning April 01, 2019.

(a) Ind AS 116, Leases
This standard will replace the current guidance in Ind AS-17, Leases.
Under Ind AS 116, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the
accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet. The standard
removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases and requires recognition of an
asset (the right-of-use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease
contracts. An optional exemption exists for short term and low-value leases.
The statement of profit and loss will also be affected because the total expense is typically higher in the
earlier years of a lease and lower in later years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced with
interest and depreciation, so key metrics like EBITDA will change. Operating cash flows will be higher as
repayments of the lease liability and related interest are classified within financing activities.
The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new
guidance on the definition of a lease.

The Group is in process of assessing the impact of the standard on the financial position, results of
operation and cash flow.

(b) Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’
The appendix explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and
liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. These amendments will be applicable on or
after April 1, 2019. In particular, it discusses:
- how to determine the appropriate unit of account, and that each uncertain tax treatment should be
considered separately or together as a group, depending on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty;
- that the entity should assume a tax authority will examine the uncertain tax treatments and have full
knowledge of all related information, i.e. that detection risk should be ignored;
- that the entity should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting when it is not
probable that the tax authorities will accept the treatment;
- that the impact of the uncertainty should be measured using either the most likely amount or the
expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty;
and
- that the judgements and estimates made must be reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or
there is new information that affects the judgements.

The Group does not expect to have a material impact on its financial statements pursuant to the
aforesaid amendment.

(c) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’
The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments
1ents. They confirm that entities must:
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- calculate the current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement by using the updated assumptions from the date of the change;

- any reduction in a surplus should be recognised immediately in profit or loss either as part of past service
cost, or as a gain or loss on settlement. In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in
profit or loss even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling;
and

- separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling through other comprehensive income.

These amendments will apply to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the group
on or after April 1, 2019.

The Group does not expect to have a material impact on its financial statements pursuant to the aforesaid
amendment.

(d) Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12,

‘Income Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those
past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Group is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments
classified as equity should be recognised according to where the past transactions or events that
generated distributable profits were recognised. These requirements apply to all income tax
consequences of dividends. Previously, it was unclear whether the income tax consequences of dividends
should be recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope of the existing guidance was ambiguous.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the group. '

(e) Amendment to Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Cost
The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings.

The group’s current practice is in line with these amendments and accordingly these amendments are not
expected to have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(f) Other standards, changes in standards and interpretation
There are no other standards, changes in standards and interpretations that are not in force that the
Company expects to have a material impact arising from its application in its financial statements.

3. Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.
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Note 5 : Investments - Non current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted, fully paid, at cost)
Investments in associate
Nelito Systems Limited (Refer note 1 and 2 below) - - 2,53,665 561
Equity investments (Unquoted, fully paid, at FVOCI)
Technopolis Knowledge Park Limited [(net of impairment of Rs.181 Lakhs 18,10,000 - 18,10,000
(March 2018 : Rs. 181 Lakhs)]
Zoroastrian Co-operative Bank Limited 6,000 16 6,000 15
Total equity instruments 16 576
Total investments 16 576
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 16 576
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments (181) (181)

Notes :
Group's ownership interest in an Associate

1. Although the group holds less than 20% of the equity shares of Nelito Systems Limited, and it has less than 20% of the voting power at
shareholder meetings, the group exercises significant influence by virtue of its contractual right to appoint two out of seven directors to the board

of directors of that Company.

2. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 21, 2018 decided to exit from Nelito Systems Limited (an Associate
Company). Considering the intention of the Board, this investment in the Associate of Rs 562 Lakhs (253,665 shares) as at March 31, 2019 has been

classified as ‘Assets classified as held for sale’ in accordance with IND AS 105.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 6 : Trade receivables
(a) Non-current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Trade receivables - 223
Less : Allowance for Doubtful Debts (expected credit loss allowance) -
Total - 223

Break-up of security Details

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Trade receivables considered good — secured

Trade receivables considered good — unsecured - 223
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -

Trade receivables — credit impaired -

Total - 223
Allowance for doubtful debts { Expected credit loss allowance) -
ITotal Trade receivable - 223

(b} Current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade receivables 6,152 5,660
Receivable from related parties (refer note 41) 2 1
Less ' Allowance for Doubtful Debts (expected credit loss allowance) (157) (188)
Total 5,997 5,473
Break-up of security Details (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Trade receivables considered good — secured

Trade receivables considered good — unsecured 6,154 5,661
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -

Trade receivables — credit impaired - .
Total 6,154 5,661
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (expected credit loss allowance) (157) (188)
Total Trade receivable 5,997 5,473

1. Trade receivables are dues in respect of goods sold and services rendered in the normal course of business.
2. The normal credit period allowed by the group ranges from O to 60 days.
3. The group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected cre

based on a detailed analysis of trade receivables.

4 There are no dues by directors or other officers of the group or any
other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a

director is a member

dit loss allowance for trade receivables

of them either severally or jointly with any
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Stateme

Note 7 : Loans
(a) Non-current

nts for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Security deposits 24 29
Total 24 29
Break-up of security details {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loans considered good - Secured - -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 24 29
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk -
Loans — credit impaired - -
Total 24 29
Less : Loss allowance - -
Total 24 29
(b) Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Security deposits 150 124
Loans to employees 7 4
Less : Loss allowance (21) (21)
Total 136 107
Break-up of security details (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loans considered good - Secured - -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 157 128
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk -
Loans — credit impaired . .
Total 157 128
Less : Loss allowance 21 21
Total 136 107
Note 8 : Other financial assets
{a) Non-current (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at s at
Particulars e A
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balances held as margin money against bank guarantees 16 -
Finance Lease receivable 269

285




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(b) Current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars -y —
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unbilled revenue 780 221
Fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts 1
Finance Lease receivable 289
Others 50 48
Total 1,119 270
Note 9 : Income tax assets (net) - Non-current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance 2,208 2,141
Add : Tax deducted at source and advance tax 1,328 1,042
[Net of provision for tax 2019 : Rs. 1062 lakhs (2018: Rs. 466 lakhs}]
Less: Income tax refund 799 704
Less: Current tax payable for the year 596 271
Closing balance 2,141 2,208
Note 10 : Other assets
(a) Non-current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Balances with government authorities 2 2
Deferred rent expenses 7 6
Prepaid Expenses 45 -

Total 54 8
(b) Current (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Prepaid expenses 115 119
Advance to suppliers 26 91
Balance with government authorities 811 202
Deferred rent expenses 3
Others 10 8
Total 962 423




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 11 : Inventories

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)

Stock-in-trade 789 887
Total 789 887
Note 12 : Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Balances with Banks :-
In current accounts 422 233
(b) Cheques on hand 125 163
{c) Cash on hand 1 1
Total 548 397
Note 13 : Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
In earmarked Accounts
(a) Unpaid dividend accounts 3 3
(b) Balances held as margin money against letter of credit and bank 26 25
guarantees
Total 29 28
Note 14 : Contract liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advances received from customers 922 -
Deferred revenue 1,430
Total contract liabilities 2,352




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 14 : Equity share capital

[Rs. In Laldhs)

" As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Authoriseidl share capital:
2.50,00,000 (2,50,00,000 as at March 31, 2018} equity shares of Rs 10/- each 2,500 2,500
Hideemable Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each 4,500 2,500

5,000 5,000
Issued share capital:
2,28,18,400 (2,28,18,400 as at March 31, 2018) equity shares of Rs 10/- each) L. 2188 1,282

2,282 2,282
Subscribed and paid-up share capital:
2 21.17,461 (2,28,17,461 as at March 31, 2018) equity shares of Rs 10/- each) 2,282 2182
Total | 2,282 2,282
Notes:
(1) Movement in equity share capltal
There has been no movement in issued, subscribed and paid up share capital ol the group, during the last five years
(i) Detalls of shares held by the holding cormpany, the holding ¢ y, thelr subsidiaries ant associates

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars Number of shares Amount Number of shares T Amount
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

The 1ata Power Company Linited (98 65HHeEng Company) 1,10,99,630 1,110 1,10,99,630 1,110
Altaab vestment Company Limited (1.44%) (sdbsidiaty o Higlding Coimpany) 3,28,310 33 3,28,310 33.

{iit) Terms and rights attached to eguity shares

The rampany has ssued only one cass ol equity shares having a par value of
the company, the haltler ol equity shares will bie entitled 1o seceive remaining
on hguidation will ks i proportian to this Aupthier of sty shares held by the

{iv) Detalls of shareholdar holding more than 5% shares in the company

Rs.10 /- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribut]

shareholders

in the event of liquidation of
ion of dividend and proceeds

As at As at

Name of shareholder March 31,2019 ° March 31, 2018
o e e Number of shares held| % holding Number of shares held| % holding
Equity shares with voting ilghh 1
The Tata Power Compary: Limited 1,10,99,630 48 65% 1,10,99,630 48 65%

(v} 939 shares (March 31,2018 939 shares) are kefil in ubeyance out of the rig

hts issued in the year 1994 pending for final allotment

(vi) There are no shares bought back or allotted ¢ither s fully paid up by way of bonus shares or allotted under any contract without payment received in

immediately preceding March 31, 2019

cash during 5 years
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 16 : Reserves and surplus

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
General reserve - Refer (i) below 250 250
Retained earnings - Refer (ii) below 3,040 833
Total 3,290 1,083
{l) General reserve {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance 250 250
Addition during the year -
Closing balance 250 250
{ii) Retained earnings {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance 833 (356)
Net Profit for the year 2,229 1,211
Items of other Comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earning
- Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted (1) (3)
for using the equity method
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net of tax (21) (19)
Closing Balance 3,040 833

Note 16 (a) : Other Reserve - Reserve for FVOCI Equity instrument

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Opening balance 12 11
Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments * 1
Closing Balance 12 12

* figures below rounding off norm adopted by the company

General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amount that can be
distributed by the group as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also
considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013

Retained earnings

The same reflects surplus/ (deficit) after taxes in the Statement of Profit and Loss The amount that can be distributed by the group as
dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the bafance in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013

Reserve for Equity FVOCI instrument

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed of

Note on Dividend :-

For financial year ended March 31,2019, the Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of 15% (Rs. 1.50 per equity share of
Rs.10/- each), subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on July
24, 2019,




Nelco Limited
Notes annexe

Note 17 : Borrowings
() Non - current

d to and forming part of Consolidated Financial State

ments for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Rs. In Lakhs)

particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Unsecured
(i) Finance lease obligation (refer note (i) below) 220 300
220 300

Secured

{1} Term Loans from banks (refer note (i) below) 1,165 458

— = I S R )] [ — T

[Total 3,385 758

Notes

{1) The terms of repayment of lnans are stated baltw!

Particulars As at As at Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest Nature of Securlty
March 31, March 31, (p.a.}
2019 2018

finance lease obligation 220 300 |Repayable in quarterly 9.50% Unsecured
aual instalments for five
years till December, 2023

South tndian Bank Limited 186 289 |Repayable in quarterly MCLR + 0.5% Hypothecation of asset
equal instalments till acquired utilizing the
September, 2022 loan.

ICIC! Bank Ltd 282 169 | Repayable in quarterly I-MCLR 1 year Exclusive charge over
wryhal instalments till +1.30% the assets, financed by
March, 2022 rupee term loan.

IFT Bank Lid 2,697 Quarterly installment begin MCLR + 0 65% FROTIAIV EVATEE O Te
from July, 2019, last date of VTS Value of VSATS
installment April 30, 2023 installed against the loan

provided by IDFC bank.
3,385 758
{b) Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
S e ——
Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured

11| Term loans from Banks [refer note {i) below)

Secured
{1} Term loans from banks {refer note {i} below)
|ii) Bank overdraft (refer note (i) below)

Total

e

3,215 3,500
3,215 3,500
137 280
54 59

I




Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and formi

ng part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31

(1) Repayiment schedule is as Tollows

, 2019

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

As al Terms of Repayment

Rate of Interest (p.

a.} Nature of Security

I

Net debt reconcillation

{ii) The carrying amount of financial and non-financial assets pledged a

{an1k of India - Bank overdralt 54 10 |Payabie on demand 2 00 % over | BOI MCLR |1} First pari passu charge
+ BSS and 2.55% over |on current assets by way ol
MCLR + BSS hypothecation
1) Second pari passu
charge on alf present and
{uture fixed assets ie land
and building, plant and
machinery situated at EL-6,
TTC industrial Area, MIDC,
Electranic Zone, Mahape,
Mayl Mumbai
IDFC Bank Ltd 2,015 2,500 |Bulli:t repayment payable on 915%t0975% Linsecured
due date
(1T Bank Ltd 1,200 1,000 |Payable on demand 1-MCLR 1 year Unsecured
+1.30%
The Zoroastrian Co-op Hank Limited 137 280 | #avaulio on duernand 1151 Lakhs @ Hypothecation by way of
liajik base rate first charge on the
2) 86 Lakhs equipment's to be
@3% below purchased out ol the
Bank's MLR Bank's Term Loan
Aol Bank Lirmined - Bank pverdratt 49 |Payalile on demand 3 Months LI« 1 7% | 1] First charge over current
assets of the Group
1] First charge over fixed
asse1s of the Group
{eaclutling the assets
funted by Zoroastrian
Bank) and negative lien on
commercial VSAT license
— ]
| 30 3,939 J

s security for current and non current borrowings (refer note 34)

{Rs, In Lakhs)

Partlculars As at As at
viarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 |

Cash & cash eguivalents 548 9¥
Bank overdraft (54) (59)
Current borrowings (3,352} (3,780)
Non current borrowings (including current maturities of Long Term Dbt} (4,834) (1,167}
bt~ - - T | 17,692) |4.5cﬂ

== (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars | Otherassets | Liabilities from financial actlvities Total

) Cash & bank | FInance Lease Non current Current
overdrafts obligatlon borrowlngs borrowlng

Net debt as at April 1, 2017 (232) {430) (4,696) (5,358)
Cash flow 570 67 (364) 916 1,189
Acquisitions - Finance leases {443) (443}
Interest expenses (16) {26) (541) {583)
Interest paid 16 29 541 586
Mot debt as at March 31, 2018 338 {376) (791) |3,780) (4,609)
Cash flow 156 75 (3,742) 428 (3,083)
Acquisitions - Finance leases .
Interest expenses (33) (191) {496) (720)
Interest paid 33 191 4396 720
\@deh:-as at March 31, 2019 494 (301) (4,533) (3,352) {?,@




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 18 : Other financial liabilities
{a) Non-current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Liability towards voluntary retirement scheme 7 10
Total 7 10
{b) Current {Rs. in Lakhs)
X As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest accrued 4 4
Liability towards voluntary retirement scheme 5 13
Sundry deposits received from customers 58 58
Current maturities of long-term debt 1,445 405
Capital creditors 2,185 769
Employee benefits payable 656 517
Fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts 37 -
Payable to holding company 6 .
Unclaimed dividend 3 3
Total 4,399 1,769
Note 19 : Provisions {Rs. in Lakhs)
{a) Non-current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for Employee Benefits obligations:
Compensated absences (Refer note 40} 202 177
Gratuity (Refer note 40) 289 244
Total 491 421
(b) Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits obligations:
Compensated absences (Refer note 40) 31 22
Gratuity (Refer note 40) 27 14
58 36
Provision - Others:
Estimated losses on onerous contracts (Refer note 44) - 23
Warranty (Refer note 44) 58 49
58 72
Provision for disputes (Refer note 44) 90 73
Total 206 181




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year

Note 20 : Other liabilities
{a) Non-current

ended March 31, 2019

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred profit on sale of fixed assets on finance lease 21 30
Total 21 30
{b) Current {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advance received from customers - 862
Income received in advance - 1,540
Statutory dues payable 241 164
Deferred profit on sale of fixed assets on finance lease 10 9
Total 251 2,575
Note 21 : Trade payables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade payables:
i Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 47) . =
(il} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,599 3,225
(iii) Trade payable to related parties (refer note 41) 34 26
Total 3,633 3,251




Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 22 : Revenue from operations {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue From Contracts with Customer*
Sale of products 4,922 2,787
Sale of services 14,178 12,166
19,100 14,953
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 1 8
1 8
Total 19,101 14,961
*See Note 43 for details about changes in Accounting Policies consequent to adoption of IND AS 115
Reconciliation of revenue recognised wlith contract price: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Contract price 19,101 14,961
Adjustments for:
Contract liabilities - -
14,101 14,961
Note 23 : Other income {Rs. in Lakhs)
r Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Interest Income
- On bank deposits 22 3
- On finance lease 60 .
- Onincome tax refund 119 110
201 113
Other non-operating Income
Insurance claims recovered 1 -
Liabilities/Provisions no longer required, written back 69 .
Rent income 73 95
provision for foreseeable losses written back {Refer note 44) 10 45
Others 11 177
164 317
Other gains
Profit or sale of property, plant and equipment {net) 6 21
Unwinding of discount on financial asset measured at amortised cost 57 43
B3 64
Total 48| 49d

%,
7 o A
* Mumb2
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 24 : Changes in inventorles of stock-in-trade (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Inventories at the beginning of the year :

Stock - in - trade 887 866
Contracts in progress - 35
887 901

Less : Inventories at the end of the year :
Stock - in - trade 789 887

Contracts in progress - E
789 887

Net (increase) / decrease In inventories of stock-in-trade 98 14




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 25 : Employee benefits expense

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Salaries and wages 2,479 1,991
Contributions to provident fund (Refer note 40) 85 65
Contributions to superannuation and other funds (Refer note 40) 21 20
Gratuity (Refer note 40) 43 34
srafl welfare expenses 151 146
Total 2,779 2,256

Note 26 : Finance costs

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest expense on:

Borrowings 621 537

Trade payables 18 7

Bank charges 66 49
Interest on finance lease 33

Total 738 593

Note 27 : Depreciation and amortisation Expense {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Depreciation of property, plant and equipments 1,240 908

Amortisation of intangible assets 56 41
[Total 1,206




Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 28 : Other Expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Consumption of loose tools 12 10
License fees to Department of Telecommunications 1,188 1,064
Subcontracting expenses 1,329 1,132
Power and fuel 209 205
Rent including lease rentals 74 182
Repalirs and maintenance - Machinery 159 131
Repairs and malntenance - Others 432 486
Insurance 8 7
Rates and taxes 13 13
Travelling and conveyance 186 164
Freight and forwarding 275 170
Legal and professlonal charges 184 297
Consultancy charges 287 288
Director sitting fees 48 42
Installation expenses 268 173
Bad debts written off 72 86
Less: Provision for doubtful debts made in earlier years written back (72) (86)
Provision for doubtful debts 40 19
Provision for warranty (net) (Refer note 44) 26 20
Foreign exchange loss {net) 141 30
Miscellaneous expenses 980 775
Other expenses 5,859 5,208
Transponder charges 3,469 3,140
Total other expenses 9,328 8,348
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 29 : Discontinued Operation

The Company vide its letter dated September 1, 2017 informed the stock exchange about the approval of the Board of Directors to
(i) transfer by way of slump sale on a going concern basis, for a lump sum consideration to its wholly owned subsidiary, Nelco
Network Products Ltd (NNPL) of the following - (a) Integrated Security and Surveillance Solution ('SSS') business and (b) Very Small
Aperture Terminals ("VSAT") hardware business and allied services consisting of network management, project
management, infrastructure services, turnkey solutions for satellite communication systems, and co-location services to
customers other than Tatanet Services Ltd (TNSL); and (ii) the amalgamation of TNSL with the Company, through a composite
scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation (Proposed Scheme). The Proposed Scheme has been approved by National Company
Law Tribunal {‘NCLT') on November 2, 2018, and necessary steps for obtaining approvals from Department of Telecommunications
("DOT") are being taken. As per the NCLT Order, this Scheme is effective only on receiving the written approval from the
Department of Telecommunications (DoT) for transfer of licenses. The NCLT Order required the Company to file the Order with the
Registrar of Companies (RoC) within 30 days. Upon filing, RoC updated the records to reflect the Scheme as effective and TNSL as
“amalgamated” even though DoT approval is yet to be obtained. Based on legal advice, the Company has approached NCLT to
direct the RoC to amend their records to reinstate TNSL to its earlier status and cancel the effect of the scheme with immediate
effect. The decision of NCLT is awaited.

Since, the above reorganisation is between the Company (holding company) and its two wholly owned subsidiaries, this has no
implication on consolidated financial statements of the Group

Note 30 ; Fair Value Measurements

30 (a) Financial instrument by category (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

FVPL Fvodl Amortised cost FVPL FVOdl Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments 16 15
Trade Receivable 5,997 - 5,696
Cash and Cash equivalent 548 - 397
Other Bank Balances - 29 . 28
Security Deposit 174 153
Loans to Employecs 7 - 4
Other Financial Assets - 1,404 1 . 269
Total Financial Assets - 16 8,159 1 15 6,547

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 8,236 - 5,002
Trade Payables 3,633 3,251
Cther Financial Liabilities 37 2,924 - . 1,374
Total Financial Liabilities 37 - 14,793 - - 9,627

(i) Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows

underneath the table
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value- Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
recurring fair value measurement at March 31, 2019

Financial Assets

Financial instrument at FVOCI
Ivestmient 1IN equity shares 5, 16 16
Total Finapcial Assets - . 16 16

Financial Liabilities

Financial instrument at FVPL
Foreipn exchange forward contract 18 (b) 37
Total Financial liabilities : 37

o)
% -
g *x Mymbal
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Rs. in Lakhs)
[Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
tor which fair values are disclosed at March 31,2019

Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets 8{a) » 285 285
Loans 7(a) & 7 (b) - - 162 162
Total Financial Assets . - 447 447

Financial Liabilities

Barrowings 17 (a), 17 (b) - 8,236 8,236
& 18(b)

Othér Financial Liabilities 18 (a) & 18 [b) 2,928 2,928

Total Financial Liabilities - - 11,164 11,164

[Rs. In Lakhs)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value-

. L 2 L 3
recurring fair value measurement at March 31, 2018 fotes e eie] 2l Total

Financial Assets
Financial instrument at FVOCI
\nvestment in equity shares 5 15 15

Total Financial Assets - - 15 15

Financial Liabilities
Financial instrument at FVPL
Foreign exchange forward contract 8 (b} 1 - 1

Total Financial Liabllities s 1 % 1

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

for which fair values are disclosed March 31, 2018 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 6 {a) & 6 (b} . 5,707 5,707

Loans 7(a) & 7(b) 138 138

Total Financial Assets - . 4,845 5,845

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 17 (a), 17 (b) 5,002 5,002
& 18(b)

Other Financial Liabilities 18 (a) & 18 |b) = 1,374 1,374

Total Financial Liahilities . 6,376 6,376

Except for those financial assets/liabilities mentioned in the above table, the group considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets / liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values due to their short term nature, For financial
assels that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts ire egual to the fair values.

Level 1 - Level 1 Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted price. This includes listed equity instruments,
traded bonds, mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technique
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity - specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
a) Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments include:

- The use of quoted market price or daaler quotes for similar instruments.

_ The fair value of foreign exchange forward contract is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

_The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
b) During the current year, there is no significant movement in the items of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy
¢) The Fair value for investment in unquoted equity share were calculated based on risk adjusted discounted rate. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unchservable inputs including counterparty credit
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(iii) valuation processes
The finance department of the group performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, Audit Committee

and the finance team at least once every three months, in line with group’s quarterly reporting periods

{iv) Falr value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
. March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Barticulars Carrying Carrying
Fair Value Fair Value

Amounts Amounts
Financial Assets
Trade Receivable 5,696 5,707
Other Financial Assets 285 285 - -
Loans 181 162 157 138
Total Financlal Assets 466 447 5,853 5.845
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 8,236 8,236 5,002 5,002
Other Financial Liabilities 2,924 2,928 1,374 1,374
Total Financial Liabilities 11,160 11,164 6,376 6,376

Significant Estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The group
uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions seg (i) and

(iii} above.
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Note 31: Flnancial Risk Management
The Group's activities expose it to the market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk
This note explain the sources of risk which the antity is expasad to and how the entily manage the risk

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade  |Ageing analysis, credit ratings Diversification of bank deposit,
receivables, loans, financial assets credit limits
measured at amortised cost.
Liquidity risk Borrowings, Trade Payables, Rolling cash flow forecast Availability of bank credit lines

contract liabilities and other and borrowings facilities

Financial liabilities

Rolling cash flow forecast
Sensitivity analysis

Monitoring Foreign currency
fluctuation, availing Forward
Contracts

Market risk foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and
liabilities not denominated in

Indian rupees (INR)

Long-term borrowings at variable |Sensitivity analysis Availability of borrowing facilities
rates at fixed rate, Periodic monitoring
of variable interest rates

Market risk -interest rate

L

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss, The group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), deposits with bank and
financial institution, Loans and deposits with third party, Foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments / assets.

The group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period, It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information such as: adverse changes in business, changes in the operating results of the counterparty, change to the counterparty's
ability to meet its obligations etc. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

(i) Credit Risk Management

Financial Assets

The group maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, Security deposits with counterparties, loans to
third parties. Individual risk [imits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. Credit
limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the group.

The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is the carrying value of each class of financial
assets as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the
Group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which
the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business Dn account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected
credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group uses a provisian matrix and forward-looking information and an
assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset to campute the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables

Two customers as at March 31, 2019 and Five customers as at March 31, 2018 contributed to more than 5% of the total balance of
trade receivables Receivable {Gross) from these customers was Rs.1188 Lakhs and Rs 2,130 Lakhs as at March 31, 2019 and as at
March 31, 2018 respectively.

The amount of Trade receivable outstanding as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is as follows:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Not Due 0-180 days 181 - 365 days More than Total

365 davs
As at March 31, 2019 3,212 2,002 389 551 6,154
As at March 31, 2018 1,885 2,834 382 783 5,884

{ii) Reconciliation of loss allowances provision - Trade Receivable
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Loss Allowances on April 01, 2017
Changes in loss allowances

Loss Allowances on March 31, 2018
Changes in loss allowances

Loss Allowances on March 31, 2019
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(B) Liquidity Risk
Liquldity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The group manages its
liguidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the group
has unutilized credit limits with banks.
(i) Financing arrangements
The group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period'
{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at

March 31,2018

As at
March 31,2019

Particulars

IE—

Floating Rata

Expiring within one year {Bank overdraft, Term
Expiring bieyond one year (Term loans}

Fixed Rate

Expiring within ane year (Term Loans and other facilities)
Expiring beyond onir yea| (Term loans)

\Tital 6,164 5,469
The Bank has an unconditional right to cancel the undrawn/ unused/ unavailed portion of the loan/ facility sanctioned at any time

during the period of the loan/ facility, without any prior notice to the Company.

Loans and other facilities) 6,164 4,469

1,000

{ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for

non derivative financial liabilities.

all

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Balance due within 12 months equal their carrying

balances as the impact of discounting is not significant
|fs. In Lakhs]

Ghtraciaalmaturities of financal | Loss than 1 Year| 1-2Years 2 Year and -
ilities Above
Mareh 31, 2019
Non - Derivative
Borrowings 4,851 1,514 1,871 8,236
Trade payables 3,633 3,633
(ther Financial Liabilities 2,954 4 4 2,962
Total Non dervative labllities 11,438 1,518 1,875 14,831
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial 2 Year and
] Less than 1 Year 1-2Years Total
llabilitles Above
March 31, 2018
Non - Derivative
Borrowings 4,244 241 517 5,002
Irade payables 3,251 3,251
Other Financial Liabilities 1,364 5 8 1,377
|Total Non derivative liabilities | 8,859 | 246 525 | 9,630 |

(C) Market Risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

Group is exposed to foreign exchange fisk arising from direct trarsactions in foreign currency and also indirectly through transactions
denarmmated in loreign currency though settled in functional currency (INR], primarily with respect 1o the US Dallar (USD). Foreign
currency risk anses from future cammercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not
the group's functional currency (INR)

The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:
The group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows
(Rs, in Lakhs)

i Foreign | AsatMarch 31,2019 As at March 31,2018

Particulars Currency Inforelgn Rs in Lakhs In fakeign Rs In Lakhs
currency Currenty

Financial Liabilities

Irade Payables usD 34 2,362 25 1,646

Derivative Liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contract

Huy Foreign Currency ush (25) {1,750) (4) (276)

Met Exposure to Foreign Currency Liability uso 9 612 21 1,370

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables usD (1) [45) {3) (176)

Advance to Suppliers uso » (8)

Net Exposure to foreign currency Assets uso {1) (45) {3) (184)

* figures below rounding off norm adopted by the group

o chartered 4o~
Up
/
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{b) Sensitivity

The Sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly currency denominated financial instrument .
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Impact on profit after tax |

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

USD sensitivity
INR/USD  Increase by 5% {March 31, 2019 5%)* 20) (40)
INR/USD Decrease by 5% {March 31, 2019 S%)* 20 40
* Holding all other variables constant

(ii) Cash Flow and fair value interest rate risk
The group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the group to cash flow interest

rate risk

{a) Interest Rate risk exposure
The exposure of the group's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Sy ——
e March 31,2019 |March 31,2018
varlable Rate Borrowings 7,933 1,112
Fixod Rate Borrowings 303 1, 890
Total Borrowings H,236 5,002

(b} Sensitivity
profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Impact on profit after tax
As at As at
March 31,2019 |March 31,2018
Interest Rate  Increase by 100 basis points* [56) (3)
|nterest Rate Decrease by 100 basis points® S6 3
* Holding all other variahli constant

(iii) Price Risk
The Group does not have any financial instrument which is exposed to change in price.

Note 32: Capital Management
Risk Management
The Groups's objectives when managing capital are to
- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, 50 t
for other stakeholders, and
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return

hat they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Loan covenants
Under the terms of the major borrowing and facilities, the group is required to comply with the following financial covenants.
1. Standalone net worth to remain positive.
2. Standalone Debt Equity ratio of maximum 4:1
3. Ratio of Total Outside Liabilities (TOL) to Total Net worth (TNW) should be less than 4 as on March 31, 2019 and less
than 5 as on March 31, 2018 calculated for Tatanet Services Limited for loan taken by Tatanet Services Limited.
4. Standalone Fixed asset coverage ratio should be greater than or equal to 1 17
5. Consolidated net debt to EBIDTA ratio should be less than 4 upto FY 2020 and 3 after FY 2020
6 Consolidated Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) should be greater than 1.10
Group has complied with the above covenants througout the reporting period

Note 33 ; Offsetting Financial Assets And Financial Liabilities
There are no financial assets and liabilities which are eligible for offset under any arrangement

Collateral against borrowings
The Group has pledged financial instruments as collateral against a number of its borrowings. Refer to note no. 34 for further

information on financial and non-financial collateral pledged as security against borrowings
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Note 34 : Assets Pledge As Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are :
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2019 |March 31,2018
Current Assets
Flnancial Assets
First Charge
Trade receivables (Including non-current) 5,997 5,696
Inventories 789 887
Cash & cash equivalents 548 397
Bank balances other than above 29 28
Loans 136 107
Other financial assets 1,119 270
Other current assets a6 423
Total Current Assets pledged as Security 9,580 7,808
Non Current Assets
First Charge
{i} Plant and Machinary 2,015 2,254
{ii) Office Equipment 6 10
{iii) Intangible Assets 163 184
{iv) Capital work-in-progress a4
Total (A) 2,478 2,448
Second Charge
(i) Building 85 97
(i) Plant and Machinary 767 708
{iii) Office Equipment 5171 1,321
Total (B) 6,023 2,126
Total Non-Current Assets pledged as Securlty Total (A+B) 8,501 4,574
| Total Assets pledged as Security — R _]__ 18,081 12,382 |
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Note 35: Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The group’s chief
operating decision maker are the Board of Directors

a) Primary segment:
The group has identified business segments as reportable segments. The segment have been identified taking In to account the
organisational structure as well as the differing risks and returns of these segments. The identified business segments are :
1) Automation and control : which comprises of sales of security and surveillance products
2) Network systems : which comprises sale of Very Small Aperture Terminals ("VSAT”) hardware and providing allied services
consisting of network management, project management, infrastructure services, turnkey solutions for satellite communication
systems, and co-location services to customers.
b) Secondary segment:
The group caters mainly to the needs of the domestic market, the export turnover of Rs. 347 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 395 Lakhs) is not
significant in the context of the total external revenue of Rs.19,101 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 14,961 Lakhs).
Further, segment assets and capital expenditure incurred outside India are not significant in relation to the total assets and total capital
expenditure incurred during the period, as such there are no reportable geographical segments.
Primary segment disclosure - Business segment for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Rs. in Lakhs)
I Particulars Automation & Network Systems Total
Control
A | Segment revenue from operations
External revenue 361 18,740 19,101
243 14,718 14,961
Less : Intersegment revenue
Total segment revenue 19,101
14,961
B | Segment results (284) 4,119 3,835
(340) 3,633 3,293
Add / (Less]
Share of profit of associate accounted for using equity method 9
57
Finance cost unallocable to segments (551)
- (553)
Other unallocable income / (expenditure) (1,291)
(1,275}
C | Profit before tax for the year 2,002
1,522
D | Segment assets 1,189 17,462 18,651
1,696 10,878 12,574
Add: Unallocable corporate assets 5,084
3,637
Total assets 23,735
16,211
E | Segment liabilities 347 13,073 13,420
589 7,273 7,862
Add: Unallocable corporate liabilities 4,731
4,972
Total Liabilities 18,151
12,834
F | Capital expenditure 6,754 6,754
44 2,981 3,025
G | Depreciation 5 1,212 1,217
12 898 910
[T Depreciation - Unallocable - 79
- 39
Depreciation from total operations 5 1,212 1,296
12 898 949
H | Non Cash expenses
Provision for doubtful debts/advances 42 (2) 40
26 (7) 19

Note: Figures in italics pertains to the previous year ended March 31, 2018
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Note 36 : Income Tax
a. Components and movements of deferred tax asset (net) :

Partlculars As at Recognised As at Recognised in MAT As at
April 1, 2017 in the March 31, the statement Credlt March 31,
statement 2018 of profit and Utilisation 2019
of profit and Loss
Loce
(a) (b) (c= a+b) {d) (e} (f=c+d+e)
i. Items of deferred tax liabilities :
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 61 72 133 {133) -
Assets given on Finance Lease . - - 163 - 163
Amortisation of Processing charges on borrowing . 6 6
Deferred tax on unrealised share of profit of associates - 24 24 12 - 36
Total deferred tax liabllity (i) 61 96 157 48 - 205
il. Items of deferred tax assets™ :
Disallowances under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 61 65 126 34 P 160
1961
Provision for doubtful debts and deposits 19 (1) 18 29 . 47
Allowance of Voluntary retirement expenses ufs 35 = - 19 19
DDA of Income Tax Act, 1961
Allowance of amalgamation expenses u/s 35 DD of 29 - 29
Income Tax Act, 1961
Credit of Minimum alternate tax u/s 115 JAA of Income . 498 (116) 382
Tax Act, 1961
Unabsorbed long term capital loss - 28 28
Miowance of legal dispute expenses provision s 26 - 26
disallowed earlier
Allowance of Impairment of Investment disallowed . = 38 . 38
earlier
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 59 (15) 44 131 - 175
Others 7 7 39 - 46
Total Deferred Tax Assets (i) 139 56 195 871 {116) 950
Net Deferred Tax Assets (li-1} 78 (40) 38 823 (116) 745
" consdered to the extent that there are compensating timing differences, reversal of which will result in sufficient income against which this can be
realised.
Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2019 2018

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 596 271
Total current tax expense 596 271

Deferred tax

Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (871) (56)
(Decrease| / increasein deferred tax liabilities 48 96
Total deferred tax expenses / (benefit) (823) 40

income tax expense (227) 311
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Note 36: (b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rates:

Note 36 !

Note 37:

Note 38:

ents for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Profit before tax 2,002 1,522
Statutory tax rate (%) 29.12% 33,06%
Tax at Indian tax rate 583 503
Difference in future Income Tax rate for defer tax recognisation (50)
Deferred tax asset not recognised on :

Carried Forward Brought Forward Loss allowance under Income Tax Act - (320)

Others 8
Deferred tax not created on temporary differences in previous year reversed in (17)
current year
Deferred tax recognised for the first time

MAT Credit recognised {(499)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (94) -

Disallowance u/s 43B (provision for Gratuity and leave encashment) (34)

Provision for doubtful debts / assets (39)

Provision for sales tax liability (26)

Disallowance u/s 35DD (28)

Long term capital loss brought forward (28)

Provision on impairment of investment (38)

Others (47)
Other Items

MAT Credit available under Section 115JAA of Income Tax Act 1961 not 174

recognised

Others 40 (4]
Total tax expense {227) 311

(c) Tax losses

The details of carried forward tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax asset is recognised is as

follows:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018 |
Unabsorbed Depreciation . 363
Long Term Capital Loss 135
Potential Tax Benefit
On Carried forward business loss and unabsorbed depreciation @ 27 553% 100
On Carried forward Long Term Caputal Loss @ 20.60% Ziﬂ
Capital and other Commitments
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
: L ; . 418 205
fstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
far ( net of advance paid)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on other account and not provided 13 10
Ifo_r; net of advance pud)]
information in respect of “Construction Contracts” is as follows:-
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
iarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Contract revenue recognised during the year 150 86
Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognised profits 135 4,294
(less recognised losses) upto year end
Retention morey for contracts jin progress as at balance sheet date 173 173
Gross Amount due from Customers for contract work {Assets) as at
balance sheet date 92 317
Gross Amount due to customers for contract work (Liability) as at
balance sheet date =
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Note 39: Lease
39.1) Finance lease liabilitles

The Group as Lessee

a) Leasehald land

{1} Asset acqulred on finance lease represents Leasehold land T

the land at the end nf thi lease term.

(2) There are no minimi |=ase rentals payable in respect of asset acquired under finance lease.

(3) No contingent rent rec wanised /{adjusted) in the Statement of Profil and Loss in respect of finance lease

Lo} Otfice Equipment (WEAT]

g (e previous year, (he group sold certain office equipment {VSAT) and leased it back for § years on market terms. The Group classified these leases as
Jensas under IND A% 17, because the present value of the lease payments amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the asset.

he lease term is 95 years and the company does not have an option to purchase

fimance

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows
{Rs. in Lakhs]

Future minimum lease Present value of minimum lease
Interest (B)
payments (A) payments { A-B=C)
Particulars
As at As at As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
it Later than 1 year 113 108 27 33 86 75
Later than 1 year and not longer than S years 244 352 27 53 217 299
Later than 5 years - . . - - -

357 460 54 86 ELE] 374

39.2) Operating Lease
The Graup as Lessar
1) Dgaranng leases related to WEATS vin an lease, awne

(2) The lessae dois not have an aption o purchase the VEATS al the expiry of the lease period
colidated statemont of Profit and Loss for the year included under sale of

d by thie group with lease Terms bistween 3 to 7 years.

|3) Mo relundable dopoults are yaken and the |ease rantals recopnised in the con
seryices untler revenue lram Operations apgregateto As 1325 Litkhs | Previous Year Bs 621 Lakhs]

Non- Cancellable operating lease receivables
(#s. In Lakhs]

Partlculars As at As at
- March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Not Later than 1 year 743 51
Laler than 1 year and nol longer than S years 2,164 828
Later than 5 years 160 J
Total 3,067 1,179

39.3) Non cancellable operating lease Payables
aee |ur 18 Meters satellite Antennae and associated RF equipment's and facilities to operate with satellite on KU Band over Indian

Thie group has aperating e
which is non-cancellable lease. Lease payments recognised ir the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year is Rs.

skiioy These lease arrangament s 5 years,

117 lakhs {Previous year Rs.112 lakhs).
{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Particulars

Commitments for minimum lease payments In relatlon to nun-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
31 121

ot Later than 1 year
31

Later than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Total
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Note 40 : Employee benefit obligations

31,2019

a. Short-term employee benefits
These benefits include salaries and wages, including other monetary and non-monetary benefits, compensated absences
which are either non-accumulating or accumulated and expected to be availed within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

b. Long-term employee benefits

i) Defined contribution plans
Groups's contribution paid/payable d

expense and included in Note 25 under the heading

uring the year to superannuation fund and ESIC contribution are recognised as an
“Contributions to superannuation and other funds” are as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. No Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2017
a) Contribution to employees’ superannuation fund 20 18
) Contribution to employees’ state insurance scheme 1 2
Total 21 20

li) Defined Benefit Plans
The Group operates the following funded/unfunded defined benefit plans:
-Provident Fund (Funded):

The Group makes Provident Fund contributions to defined benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the scheme, the

Group is required to contribute a specified percentage

of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions as

specified under the law are paid to the provident fund set up as a trust by the Group. The Rules of the Group's provident
fund administered by the Trust requires that if the Board of Trustees are unable to pay interest at the rate declared by
Central Government under para 60 of the Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 then the shortfall shall be made good
by the Group. Having regard to the assets of the fund and the return on the investments, the Group does not expect any

shortfall in the foreseeable future.

In terms of guidance note issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India, the Actuary has provided a valuation of Provident

fund liability based on the assumptions listed and determined that there is no shortfall as at March 31, 2019
2018, respectively.

The details of fund and plan asset position are given below:

and March 31,

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2019

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

Plan assets at period end, at fair value 1,965 1,877
pPresent value of benefit obligation at period end 1,963 1,877
Asset recognized in Balance Sheet - -
The Plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities
Assumptions used in determining the present value of obligation of interest rate guarantee under the deterministic
approach :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Government of India (GOI) bond yield 7.54%
Remaining term to maturity of portfolio 11 years
Fxpected guaranteed interest rate 8.65%

7.82%
5.76 years
8.55%

The Group has contributed Rs 85 Lakhs and Rs 65 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

respectively and the same has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Provident Fund Assessment as per recent Supreme court Judgment

Recent Supreme Court judgement in case of Vivekananda Vidyamandir and Others (February 2019) lays down principles to
exclude a particular allowance from the definition of “basic wages” for the purposes of computing the deduction towards

provident fund contributions.

A review petition have been filed against the said order by other Companies and await

clarification from Provident Fund Commissioner/Supreme Court. Based on the initial assessment and recently concluded

Inspections o

.t Fund authorities, management does not expect any material impact on the financial statements,
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-Gratuity (Unfunded)
The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit scheme and the amount recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Current service cost 23 17
Interest cost {Net) 20 17
Total expense recognlised in the statement of profit and loss 43 34
Amount recognised In other comprehensive income (OCI) [Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018

Due to change in demographic assumptions * *
Due to change in financlal assumptions 5 18
Due to experience 16 ¥
Total remeasurement {gains)/losses recognised In OCi 21 19

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the group

Change in Defined Obligation (DBO) during the year

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Present value of DBO at the beginning 258 228
Current service cost 23 17
Interest cost (Net) 20 17
Liabilities transferred In/acquisitions (3) 6
Remeasurement (gain)/loss 21 19
Benefits paid (3) (29)
Present value of DBO at the end 316 258
Principal Actuarial assumptions for valuation of gratuity liability
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018
Discount rate 7.54% 7.82%
Expected rate of escalation In salary 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of employee turnover a. Forservice 4| a. Forservice 4
yearsand |years and below -
below - 8.00% 8.00% p.a.
p.a.
b. For service 5| b. For service 5
years and years and above
above - 5.00% 5.00% p.a.
p.a.

Mortality tables

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Uitimate

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for

the estimated term of the obligations.
This plan typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as:

a) Interest rate risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

b) Demographic risk - This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include
mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not
straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria.
¢) Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and.

other relevant factors.
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Sensitivity
Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions {while holding all other
assumptions constant) is:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Change In As at As at
assumption March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Increase In Decrease in Increase In Decrease In

assumption | assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 1% {17) 20 (15) 17
Expected rate of escalation in salary 1% 20 17 17 {15)
Rate of employee turnover 1% * * * e

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the group

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it
is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change In the methods and assumptions used In preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
Defined benefit liability and employers contributions

The weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation is 8 years ( 2018 - 8 years). The expected maturity analysis
of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018

1st following year 27 14
2nd following year 30 24
3rd following year 36 26
4th following year 60 31
Sth following year 30 51
Sum of years 6 to 10 148 126

iif) Other Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are accumulated and not expected to be availed within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date. Compensated absences is recognised as a liability based on actuarial
valuation of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

An amount of Rs.45 Lakhs {previous year Rs.47 Lakhs) has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended March 31, 2019 towards Compensated absences.

Provision for compensated absences has been made on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at the Balance sheet
date.

Principal Actuarial assumptions for valuatlon of long-term compensated absences

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018

Discount rate 7.54% 7.82%
Expected rate of escalation in salary 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of Employee Turnover a. Forservice 4| a. For service 4

yearsand |years and below -
below - 8.00% 8.00% p.a.

D.a.
b. For service 5| b. For service 5

years and years and above -|
above - 5.00% 5.00% p.a.
p.a.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for .
the estimated term of the obligations.
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Note 41 : Related party transactions
(A) promotor of holding company
Tata Sons Limited
(B) parent Company / Holding Company
The grap is controlled by the followlng antity

Ownership interest
Place of
Name Type . . As al As at
incarporation .
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Immediate parent
entity

1he Tata Power Company Limited India 48.65% 48.65%

Q) Subsidiary Companies
Interest in subsidiaries are set out in note 46

(D) Associate Company :
Interest in associate are set out in note 46

(E) Key Managerial Personnel

{i) Executive director
Mr.P.J. Nath {(Managing Director and CEO)

{ii) Independent and Non-Executive Directors

Mr R R Bhinge (Non-Executive Dirictor)

My Sowinyan Ramakrishnan (Non Executive Director upto July 20, 2018)

Ms. Hema Hattangady (Independent Director)

Mr Kailasam Raghuraman (Independant Director)

Wir Krishnan Ramachandran ([Independent Director)

wIT. Bahul Chandrakarit Shah {Non Executive Director w.el July 21, 2018)

Wi Saay Dube (Non-Executive Director ol Tatanet Services Ld (Material subsidiary) upto July 20, 2018)

M Iitendra Vardhaman Patl (Non-Executive Director of Tatanet Services Ltd (Material subsidiary) w.e.f. January 24, 2019)

|fs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

{1} Executive Directors
Shart-torm employee benefits 224 187
Past-employment benefits 7 6
Long term employee benefits*

(i) Non Executive and Independent Director
Directon sitting lees ag 42
Total compensation 279 235

*The Group provides long term benefits in the form of Gratuity to Key managerial personnel along with all employees, cost of
same is not identifiable separately and hence not disclosed.
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(F) Detalls of transactions between related parties are disclosed helow :

|Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr.no. Particulars The Tata Power Tata Sons Nellto Systems
Company Limited Limited Limited
. (Promoter of .
{Holding Co.) Holding Co.) {Associate)
1){Purchase :
a)|Services / Royalties - 37
{-) (28) ()
2)|Sales:
a)|Services 1 - :
() ) {)
lh}|Goods 3 X
() {-) ()
i}|Oother income
a]|Dividend received 6
{-) () ]
b}{Rent 1 : .
(1) () (-
4)|Other transactions :
a}{Reumbursements made to parties - - -
() ] )
5)|Balance Outstanding as at year end
a)|Trada receivables 2 ) )
1) ) {-)
b)|Traue payables 34 -
(-} (26) )
c)|Other Payable 6 -
(-} ) {-)

Note : {i) Figures in brackets pertain to the previous year ended March 31, 2018.
(ii) Related Party relationship is as identified by the group and relied upon by auditors.
(iii) * figures below rounding off norm adopted by the group
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Note 42 : Earnings per share (EPS)
Sr. No Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
1 Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders {Rs in Lakhs) 2,429 1,211
2 Waeighted average number of equity shares 2,28,17,461 2,28,17,461
) EPS (Rs.) |Basic and diluted] (Face value per share Rs. 10) 9.77 5.31

Note 43 : Changes in accounting policies

The Group applied Ind AS 115 for the first time by using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial appl
2018. Comparative prior period has not been adjusted

Entities applying the modified retrospective method can elect to apply the revenue standard only to contracts that are not complet
of initial application (that is, they would ignore the effects of applying the revenue standard to contracts that were completed pri
initial application). However, the Group elected to apply the standard to all contracts as at April 1, 2018,
There is no impact on the Net Assets, Retained Earnings and Total Equity by app
line item of Statement of Profit and Loss by application of ind AS 115. The financia

adoption of Ind AS 115 is as given below:

ication of April 1,

ed as at the date
or to the date of

lication of Ind AS 115. There is no impact on the financial statement
| statement line item of Balance Sheet that were impacted by

Balance sheet (extract) March 31, 2019 Increase/ March 31, 2019
without {decrease) as reported
adoption of Ind
AS 115
Other current liabilities 2,603 (2,352) 251
Contiact liabilities 2,352 2,352
“Lotal other current liabilities & Contract liabilities 2,603 2,603
Note 44 : Contingent liabilities [Rs. in Lakhs)
51, No. ~ Particulars o B As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018
a) Claims against (e group not icknowledged as debt comprises of:
_Sales tax and service tax claims disputed by the group relating to issues of applicability and classification 4,109 4,114
b} Claims from Vendor
. Future cash outflows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions 168 168
pending at various forums / authorities
) Income tax demand against the group not acknowledged as debt and not provided for, relating to issues of 559 631
deductibility and taxability in respect of which group is in appeal
Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending at various forums / authorities

Disclosure as raquired by Ind AS 37 — “Provisions, contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets” as at year end are as follows;
out of pending assessment proceedin

gs with various Government Authorities.

a)  Provision for disputes represents estimates nade for probable liabilities arising
The information usually required by Ind AS 37 — "Frovisians, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, is not disclosed on grounds that it can be expected
to prejudice the interests of the group. The timing of the outflow with regard to the said matter depends on the exhaustion of remedies available to the group
under the law and hence, the group i1s not able to reasonably ascertain the timing of the outflow

b)  Provision for Warranty relates to warranty provision made in respect of sale of certain products, the estimated cost of which is accrued at the time of sale. The
products are generally covered under free warranty period ranging from one ta thyee years

¢)  Provision for future losses pertains to certain onerous contracts where the unavoidahle costs of meeting the obligations as per the contracts exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received from it

d) The movement and provision durlig the year are as follows: {Rs. in Lakhs}

Provision for disputes Warranties Future foreseeable losses on
contracts
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018 | March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(puning Balance 73 62 49 99 23 BY
Add! Provision during the year 28 11 33 30 .
(Less): Utilisation during the year (11) (17) (70) (13) (21)
{Less): Reversal during the year {7) (10) (10} (47)
Add: Effects of unwinding of discounts on Provision . . 2
Closing Balance 90 73 58 49 23
Classified as current { Refer note 19(b}} 90 73 58 49 23
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Note 45 :

Il to the Companies Act, 2013

a. Net assets, i.e., total assets minus total liabilities

=

o

o

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements to Schedule

(Rs. in Lakhs)

IName of the entity in the Group As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated net Amount
] net assets assets
Parent
Nelco Limited 75.25% 4,202 72.58% 2,451
Indian Subsidiaries
Tatanet Services Limited 26.65% 1,488 3022% 1,020
Nelco Network Products Limited -0.05% 3) : *
Indian Associate {Investment as per equity method)
Nelito Systems Limited 10 00% 562 16.61% 561
Adjustment on consolidation — 11.91% (665) -19.41% {55)
Total 100.00% 5.584 | 100.00% 3,377
* figures below rounding off norm adopted by the group
_Share in profit or loss (Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of the entity in the Group Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018 T
As % of consolidated net Amount As % of consolidated net Amount
Praofit and Loss Profit and Loss
Parent o
Nelco Limited 79 51% 1,772 80.67% 977
Indian Subsidiaries
Tatanet Services Limited 21.00% 468 17.42% 211
Nelco Network Products Limited -013% (3) -0.33% (4)
Indian Associate (Investment as per equity method)
Nelito Systems Limited 0.40% 9 4.71% 57
Adjustment on consolidation -0.78% {17) -2.46% {(30)
Total 100.00% 2,229 100.00% 1,511
Share in Other Comprehensive Income (R in Lakhs)
Name of the entity in the Group Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March ;1_,—2'018
| As % of consolidated net|  Amount As % of consolidated net Amount
Other Comprehensive Other Comprehensive
Income Income
Parent
Nelco Limited 95.45% {21) 85.71% {18)
Indian Subsidiaries
Tatanet Services Limited ‘ b
Nelco Network Products Limited
Indian Associate (Investment as per equity method)
Nelito Systems Limited 455%| {1} 14 29% 31
Total 100.00% 122} 100.00% {21)
* figures below rounding off norm adopted by the group.
Share in Total Compriehensive Income (M5, n Lakhs)
Name of the entity in the Group Year ended March 31,2019 Year ended March 31, 2018 I
As % of consolidated net|  Amount As % of consolidated net Amount
Total Comprehensive Total Comprehensive
Income Income
Parent o
Nelco Limited 79.36% 1,751 B0.58% 959
Indian Subsidiaries
Tatanet Services Limited 2121% 468 17.73% 1
Nelco Network Products Limited -014% (3) -0.34% (4)
Indian Associate {Investment as per equity method)
Nelito Systems Limited 036% 8 454% 54
Adjustment on consolidation -0.79% (17) -251% (30)
|Total 100.00% 2,207 100.00% 1190
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Note 46: Interest in other entities
(a) Subsidiaries
The group’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2019 are set out below.Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly by the group,
and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Qwnership interest held by the Principal activities

group

Place of business /

Name of the enmv_

Country of

incarporation B —ASQT AST
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Tatanet Services Limited T |india 100% 07 | Praviding Bandwidth Services
Nelco Network Products Limited India 100% 100, | Sale of VSAT Equipment's
{b) Internsts in associate
set oul below are the associate as al Mirch 31, 2019 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the group. The entities listed beluw have share capital consisting solely of

pyuity shares, which are held dirertly Ly the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is
{he same as the proportion of voting rights held.
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Carrying Amount
As at | As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

Quoted Fair Value
As at
March 31,2019

Accounting
Method

. % of Ownership . i
Place of business R Relationship
interest

Nelito Systems Limited India 12.30% Asspciate
: B S =
Total Equity Accounting Investments - -
*Unlisted entitﬁo quoted price T =
(i) Commitments and cnrrtlm@[l_&%in rus‘_Pil_ofLssociates (Rs. in Lakhs)

ntingent liabilities - associates -
704

Financial Bank Guarantee

(i) summarised financial information for associate
The tables below provide summarised financial information for the associate that are material to the group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the relevant associates and not Nelco Limited's share of those amounts

_(Rs.in Lakhs)

Fummarised Balance Sheet Nelito Systems Limited
T Asat As at
_Maﬂ31,2019 March 31,2018
Tatal current assets 5,652 5,446
Total non-current assets 1,114
Total current liabilities 1,950

Tatal Non-current liabilities | 60
Net assets 4,550

[Rs. in Lukhs)

Reconciliation to carrying amounts ‘ il Neﬁo Systems Limited
| Asat As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Opening net assets I 4,550 4,152
Profit / (Loss) for the year 485 482
Previous year adjustment (71) -
Other comprehensive income (27) (22)
Dividends patd (62) (62)
Closing net assets 4,875 4,550
Groups' share in % 12 30% 12.30%
praportion of the groups ownership 600 561
interest ®
_se2] _SBJ

Carrying amount”

(Rs. in Lakhs)

mﬁdxmﬁmﬁlmd‘" Nelito Systems Limited
loss - Asat T Asat |
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Revenue — | 9,047 | 8740
profit / {Loss) for the year 485 482
Other comprehensive income {27) (22)
Total comprehensive income 458 459
Groups' share in % 12.30% 12.30%
Groups share of profit/{loss)* 56 57
E‘.‘M_‘}."-'L‘M’_ I S| S

*The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 21, 2017 decided to exit from Nelito Systerms Limited (an Associate Compiny).
Considering the intention of the Board, this investment in the Associate has been classified as ‘Assets classified as held for sisle’ in accordance with IND Al 105.
Accordingly, investment in the Associate has been accounted using equity method till September 21, 2018 However, for the above disclasure, full year's Hgure of
Nelito Systems limited has been considered A
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Note 47 : There are no Micro and Small Enterprises to whom the Group owes dues, which are outstanding as at March 31, 2019. This information as
required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined on the basls of
Informatlon available with the Group.

Signature to Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements "1" to "47"
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